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2. 2018/2019 At a Glance

The Group delivered revenue growth of 12.7% in the 12 months to 31st March 2018 to
£575.3m (2018: £510.5m), reflecting longstanding relationships with blue-chip clients and
the core ability of the Group to deliver high quality work.

Profit before tax for the year was £1.57m (2018: £18.7m). This reduction is primarily a result
of the performances of our Irish contracting and UK demolition operations within the Group,
which were negatively impacted by issues that the leadership has identified and taken swift
action in ring-fencing. .

While the performance of our Irish contracting and UK demolition operationsis
disappointing, decisive action has been taken and the Group started the 2019/20 year with
an increased order book of £362m (2018: £340m) and is preferred bidder on a further

- £275m.

Our two largest companies, PJ Carey (Contractors) Limited (Registered in the UK) and The
BDL Group plc, had a combined turnover of £467.4m in the year (representing 81% of Group
turnover) and returned an operating profit of £17.5m.

The Group remained cash generative throughout the year, closing with a healthy pipeline of
work, which is testament to the strength of the Group, our client relationships and the clarity
of our strategy and vision for growth. '

2019 marks the SOth anniversary of the Carey Group. From humble beginnings, we have
grown to become a leading family-owned design, engineering, construction, development
and resource recovery business operating across the UK and Ireland.

Our market-leading position is based firmly on our commitment to the Carey Way, which
embodies the way we do business: working collaboratively with our people, clients, partners
and suppliers to offer a best-in-class, end-to-end design and build service, placing great
importance on delivering for our clients and building long-term relationships. We are
encouraged to see the Carey Way being embraced across the Group, and we are certain
that the right team is in place for the future.

The Group has performed robustly in a challenging year. Despite the effect of our Irish
contracting and UK demolition operations on our profit performance, we are confident that
we have a platform for growth.

Our aim is to build on the success of our design and consultancy capabilities via Careys
Design Team - the fully integrated business which focusses on the most challenging and
complex projects and as such enables us to offer a compelling end-to-end design and build
solution for our clients.

Our reputation for delivering projects on-time, on-budget and to the highest quality
continues to enhance our relationships with our clients. We look forward to a positive future.
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3. Chairman’s Statement

As we close our accounts on our 50th

year, it allows us the time to reflect and
take stock of where we are today. When
my brothers and | started out SO years
ago, we never imagined that we would be
responsible for a group of companies with
a combined turnover of £575.3m. Whilst we
are pleased with the increase in turnover,
our margin has decreased this year due to
two underperforming companies within the
Group. :

We started our company on the simple
values of wanting to make a living for our
families, looking after our people and
always doing exactly what we promised we
would do for our clients. There have been
many ups and downs along the way, but we
have always stuck together as a team and
stayed loyal to the vision that we started
the business with - always seeking to do
the right thing, because it is the right thing
to do, not because we were asked to do

it. We have always believed in building a
sustainable platform, with the help of our
talented people, in order for the company to
thrive for the next SO years. This approach,
on balance, has worked. We have come out
ahead and proven successful. However, we
remain humble and never take our success
for granted.

Currently, we find ourselves in the midst

of challenging political times, with all

the uncertainty that this brings. This has
impacted the industry, resulting in contracts
taking ionger-to come to fruition than in
previous years. During this period, we must
continue to differentiate ourselves within
the market and from our competition, so
that we continue to win and deliver great
work.

Key appointments to note are Jason Carey
and Tommy Carey replacing Denis Deacy
as Interim Joint Chief Executive Officers,
Lee Daniels becoming Managing Director
of BDL Dry Lining, and Julie Welch joining
the Board as Chief People Officer. Part

of the challenge we put to them, and our,
existing leadership, is our expectation that
they will reinvigorate the underperforming
companies of the Group. At the same time,
they must also continue to build on and
enhance the reputation and results of the
well-performing companies. They must seek

to do all of this whilst preserving our values
and protecting the culture that has been
created over the years, even as we continue
to pursue our ambition to grow into new
exciting markets and attract the best talent.
No matter how much we grow as a business,
we are determined that people still feel a
close connection to Careys and know that
we're more than just a group of companies.

We have total confidence and great trust .
in our leadership team, given their swift
action in addressing the issues in our Irish
contracting and UK demoglition operations,
since they came to light. We have also been
impressed by their focus on the launch

and implementation of the strategy and
vision which enables all of our people to
understand how they can contribute to and
be a part of the success of the Carey Group
over the years'to come. This will enable us to
build on the success of the last 50 years and
create a sustainable platform for growth
that will enable future generations to be as
proud as we are today.

Notably, we continue to make improvements
in our Health and Safety culture. We

have well embedded systems and levels

of performance in place to enable us to
continue to improve as we work towards our
goal of zero harm.

As long as the values of the Group are
retained for future generations, and we
continue to look after ali who work with
Careys, then | am confident that | can look
forward with pride to many more years of
seeing where the future takes us. With a
strong forward order book and established
relationships with our long-standing clients,
the future continues to look positive.

On behalf of the Shareholders, | would like
to thank ali our employees for their hard
work and loyalty. Their commitment, insight
and willingness to go the extra mile is what
makes Careys great and we have reason to
be proud in
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It is truly an honour - as we celebrate our
S0th year in business - to have the privilege
bestowed upon us of leading the Group
through the next stages of its development.
We are extremely proud to take on this
responsibility. which we intend to fulfil by
respecting those who have led the way
before us and inspiring those who make the
journey with us now. We will build on the
sustainable platform for growth that has
been created over the last S0 years, and
continue to evolve the Group to ensure its
continued success over the next 50.

Our first strategic task as leaders was to
articulate the founders’ vision in a clear way
that could be executed at all levels of our
business, empowering our people with the
knowledge of how vital they are in delivering
our vision for the future, whilst holding
steadfast to the principles that Careys was
founded on. We give our people the ability
to achieve their potential and ambition in a
culture of growth and a safe environment.

The vision we established is closely tied to
the principles that the founders started

the company on 50 years ago. We based

it around three pillars and six consistent
behaviours that need to be lived by our
people, at all levels of the organisation, every
day. We are grateful for the dedication and
contribution which is made daily by everyone
at Careys.

Our second strategic task was to address
two underperforming companies within

the Group - our Irish contracting and UK
demolition operations -that fell below the
Shareholders’ expectations and not aligned
to the vision that embodies the Carey Way
of working. It is important to note that the
challenges were particular to these two
companies and have been fully ring-fenced.
Furthermore, we have taken swift and
decisive leadership action to meet these
challenges head on, resolve them, and set
both companies back on course for improved
future performance.

Interim Joint Chief Executive Officers’ Statement

Our strategy to integrate the services our
Group provides has enabled us to build a
reputation of trust and a self-delivery model
that allows us to secure work safe in the
knowledge of our ability to deliver on our
promises.

The Group ended the year with a strong
order book reflecting our focus on developing
long-term relationships with biue-chip
clients and a culture of delivery and integrity
that leads to repeat business. We enter

the year with secured work of £362m and
are preferred bidder on a further £275m.
The order book provides clear visibility for
the year ending 2019/20 and underpins

our confidence in the Group's future
performance.

The Group balance sheet remains strong,
evidence of the robust financial management
that is essential for our partners and supply
chain as the size and complexity of our
projects continue to increase.

We finished the year with a positive cash
position and with the priority next year

to continue to build cash reserves. This,
combined with our preference for low
gearing, reflects our prudent approach to
continuing sustainable growth.

The Board believes our balance sheet, strong
relationships with stakeholders built on years
of consistent performance, and our strategy
of repeat business delivered to the highest
quality in a non-adversarial self-delivery
model, sets us up for continued success.

Jason Carey and Tommy Carey
Interim Joint Chief Executive Officers
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5. Chief Financial Officer’'s Statement

The Group has performed robustly in
challenging market conditions, remained
cash generative throughout the year and
maintained a strong balance sheet. We
are confident that the Group is positively
positioned within the marketplace to
support continued growth despite the
backdrop of political uncertainty.

The Group delivered revenue growth of
12.7% in the 12 months to the 31st March
2019 to £575.3m (2018: £510.5m),
reflecting longstanding relationships with
blue-chip clients and the core ability of the
Group to deliver high quality work.

Our two largest companies, PJ Carey
(Contractors) Limited (Registered in

the UK) and The BDL Group plc, had a
combined turnover of £467.4m in the year
(representing 81% of Group turnover) and
returned an operating profit of £17.5m.

These strong returns have been offset by a
poor performance in two of our contracting
entities, our Irish contracting company

and our demolition company. These two
companies returned an operating loss of
£14.7m and £4.2m respectively. These
losses were attributable to four significantly
under-performing contracts. Given the
quantum of these contractual losses on

the performance of the Group for the year,
we have separated them out in our Profit
and Loss Account to assist the readers in
better appreciating the performance of the
Group before the impact of these contracts
is reflected. We have identified the issues
that lead to these losses and have taken
swift and decisive action in ring-fencing the
issues within these two companies.

Group profit before tax for the year was
£1.6m (2018: £18.7m) and EBITDA for the
year was £10.8m (2018: £26.4m). The
retained strength of our balance sheet with
£97.8m (2018: £97.3m) of net assets is
evidence of the continued financial success
of our business.

We make a full provision in our accounts

for contract retention monies owing to the
Group which at the 31st of March 2018 were
£26.9m.

The Group finances its contracting
operations through working capital and
retained profits.

Our Plant-hire and Development companies
also utilise bank borrowing to fund their
operations. The Group's gearing level
remains cautious and prudent and at .
£27.7m (2018: £34.7m) has reduced by
£7m in the year. This gearing includes £10m
of hire purchase loans to provide plant

and equipment to underpin our Plant-

hire company and £11.7m of development
funding for our development company
Careys New Homes Limited. We continually
monitor forecast cash usage to ensure that
projected financing needs are supported by
adequate cash reserves or bank facilities.

Work-in-hand stood at £362m on the 1st
April 2019 (2018: £340m). Payment of
suppliers was at an average of 39 days
(industry average 45 days). We remain
committed to reducing our payment
timescales further with the aim of being
market leading in this respect, investing
£2.1m in systems and technology to help
achieve this.

Our Commercial and Financial teams
continue to work closely together to provide
the robust financial management that will
enable the Group to grow with confidence.

Alan McCarthy ¢
Chief Financial Officer
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6. Strategic Report

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors is committed to

the principles of corporate governance
contained in the UK Corporule Governdance
Code (Code) issued in 2016. We have spent
time during the reporting year reviewing our
approach to corporate governance and as
part of that review we are looking to apply
the principles of the Wates Governance
Code for Large Companies to our business.
These will apply to our reporting in the new
financial year.

The Carey Group

The Carey Group is a leading family-

owned design, engineering, construction,
development and resource recovery
business operating across the UK and
ireland. We are passionate about delivering,
safe, high quality projects and exceptionally
high levels of client satisfaction. Our Group
companies provide specialist construction
services, asbestos removal, demoalition, civil
engineering, dry lining and house building,
together with resource recovery across multiple
sectors.

Introduction to the Strategy and Vision

Our strategy for building a sustainable platform
for growth is built around being the world's best
at the Carey Way: building a culture of robust
financial management, making continuous
investment in our people, specialist equipment
and strategic assets, and upholding our long-
standing culture of teamwork. We are passionate
about what we create and how we create it,
exhibiting an attention to detail and a desire to go
the extra mile that differentiates us in the market.

We continue to invest in our retained business
property portfolio, affording us a strong balance
sheet and creating a sustainable platform for
growth. We care about our people, our clients
and how we interact with them, and we do our
best for them. We care about our impact on the
world around us and the communities we proudly
help to create. To ensure the continued success
of our strategy we ask all our people to ‘know
their value’ and to exhibit it by living six repeated
behaviours with the aim of being contractor of
choice for our clients and our stakeholders.

The Carey Way

The Carey Way underpins our philosophy
and behaviours as we strive to be the best in
everything we do and to be better every day.

Investin’
better every
day and our

economic engine

Know our value

The Carey Way

Create
amazing
environments

WORLD'S BEST
The Carey Woy Q

ECONOMIC

ﬂ

Property Portfolio

PASSION ﬁ

build and how
we buld it &

[ e Attract, train

and develop
the best people

Attract and win more good work

Figure 1: Group strategy and vision

We work collaboratively with our people, clients,
partners and suppliers, are professional but non-
adversarial in our approach, and place great
importance in building long-term relationships.
We see the drive and focus of the Carey Way as
being our true differentiator.

Create Amazing Environments

This year we have completed work on projects:
which are fundamental to the fabric of the UK's
infrastructure. Highlights include:

22 Bishopsgate, redefining London’s skyline
with its second tallest skyscraper;

Demolition and remediation works at the
former Ford Dagenham Stamping and
Tooling Operations Plant;

3 mine shafts 120m below ground level at
Woodsmith Mine - breaking a world record
in the process - in the UK's first mining
project for nearly 3 decades;

Civil Engineering and infrastructure works
at Aberdeen Exhibition Conference Centre
- transforming the venue into Scotland's
second largest purpose built conference,
exhibition and entertainment venue;

Edinburgh Airport’s Stands Phase 2A and
2B - the dirport's first crucial phase in its
2040 expansion plan to welcome 30 million
passengers every year; and



- complex demolition works at Selfridges, the
iconic Oxford Street destination.

+  The BDL Group plc continue to assist in
the delivery of repeat work for a number of
valued clients:

+ completing projects at prestigious
developments Goodmans Field and Dickens
Yard;

+  helping to transform the former BBC TV
Centre into White City Place - a rich, vibrant
space with homes and offices;

- commencing works at 150 Bishopsgate - a
43 storey tower comprising London'’s first
Pan Pacific Hotel.

Careys New Homes Limited team continue to
create their own amazing environments. The
recently completed Terriers Court is a new
development set in an exclusive gated complex
in the heart of Buckinghamshire, whilst The
Paddocks is an outstanding development
providing a family environment in a beautiful
corner of Buckinghamshire.

We proudly create all these amazing
environments whilst standing out in our
unapologetic yellow and blue, setting up our
sites in a manner that elevates the image of
construction in the eyes of our clients and the
public.

Our new offices in Kings Cross, London and
Glasgow offer a fresh, modern working
environment, that allows our people to work in a
flexible, agile way, closer to our clients.

Attract, train and develop the best people

Our people are our greatest asset. With a
strengthened leadership team and a reputation
for best-in-class delivery, we are in a strong
position to grow and enhance the business whilst

_continuing to pursue our ambition of attracting
and nurturing the best talent.

In recognition of this we have launched a flagship
senior leadership development programme,
‘Leading Edge’ in partnership with Franklin Covey,
leading consultants in leadership development. In
2018, 45 further leaders participated in over 10
days' detailed learning. This programme is being
rolled out more widely in 2013. Our determined
aim is to make the Carey Group the natural

home for the very best people in our industry to
build lifelong careers and become future leaders
within the Group.

Attract and win more good work

The Group retains a strong reputation across
all our core sectors and despite the political
uncertainty, we commence 2018/20 with

healthy order book (E362m at 1st April 20139) and
are preferred bidder on a further £275m of work.

The gquality and integrity of our delivery is
reflected in the repeat work our teams continue
to win. Our geographic presence across the UK
and Ireland enables us to remain flexible and
responsive to regional market conditions whilst
maintaining our core offer.

The success of our integrated-business model
where we can combine the expertise of Careys
Design Team Limited, ION Environmental
Solutions Limited, T E Scudder Limited and PJ
Carey (Contractors) Limited (Registered in the
UK) allows us to differentiate ourselves from our
competitors and deliver additional value to our
clients.

We are immensely proud to have attained
new clients, winning the right type of work in
new sectors where we are building long-term
relationships with like-minded clients.

Know our value

We continue to invest in long-term strategic
assets which include our new offices in Kings
Cross, Glasgow and our existing Wembley
Campus - all of which are fully owned.

We make a conscious choice about the people
we want to work with. It is fundamentally
important for us to work with the right people:
people who share our values, approach and
ethics.

Our strong balance sheet is testament to our
prudent approach to debt and robust financial
management.

Invest in better everyday

Investing in strategic assets over the long-term
has helped us to establish our sustainable
platform for growth.

We continue our ongoing investment in our plant,
fleet and equipment and always ensure we
invest in items that improve safety, delivers ease
of use, efficiency, exceptional performance and
are environmentally friendly. We now have over
750 vehicles and more than 2,500 items of plant,
providing a range of cost-effective solutions for
our clients.

Careys Design Team continues to lead innovation
in digital technology through their use of
technologies that enable clients to have greater
certainty of programme constraints and solutions
in addition to the range of options available on a
project.
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Our People

Our People

As a family-owned business, we know our
people are at the heart of our continuing
success. It's our people who make Careys

an amazing place to work. We achieve our
strategic objectives by delivering on our vision -
we attract, train and develop the best people,
and we provide an amazing environment
characterised by empowerment, inclusivity and
opportunity.

We are proud to employ some of the best,
brightest and most talented people our industry
has to offer, and it is our responsibility to nurture
them.

We have made a significant investment as

we improve employee engagement and
development through our Franklin Covey based
leadership development programme ‘Leading
Edge’ By investing in Leading Edge, we ensure
our people are better equipped to work in an
ever increasingly disruptive landscape, always
open to working with our clients and meeting
their individual needs, whilst providing a platform
that nurtures and coaches the next generation
of leaders, ensuring the continuity and success
of the Group.

Developing our people

We have invested in the learning and
development of all our employees to increase
their knowledge, skills and development.
During 2018, we invested £2.4m in training
and e-learning events with learning activities
aligned with our business priorities. Our ‘Safe
Home Every Day’ (SHED) behaviourai safety
programme continues to run successfully with

" regular talks delivered by our leaders and

supervisors. Our improving safety culture is
evidence of the impact that these development
programmes have had. Together with our
ongoing investment in apprentices and trainees
through our early career’s strategy. these
programmes are examples of our commitment

to supporting people at all levels as they

progress within Careys.

We give our employees opportunities to increase
their functional, compliance and behavioural
development in a range of areas, including:

« Headlth, safety and environmental
compliance, including legislative
requirements - with the aim of creating a
culture of zero accidents and defects

- Business strategy. current and future needs
- to learn how to develop a competitive
advantage

+  Core competencies within existing roles and
responsibilities

- Personal learning and development -
enabling our people to reach their full
potential, which also contributes to the
Group's ability to achieve our collective aims

Our investment in the learning, training and
development of our workforce, enhances our
ability to attain our corporate objectives and
targets - whilst simultaneously enabling our
employees to contribute to their own personal
development within their lives, and as an integrol
part of the Carey Group. ’



Resourcing the Group

In 2018, 142 new colleagues joined the Group,
bringing the total average monthly number of
employees during the year to 1.506. In addition,
we deliver our projects alongside an important
skilled contractor workforce population. Our in-
house Recruitment team is focused on finding
the best people to join us at Careys and aims
to source talent directly at all career levels and
across all disciplines. 78% of new joiners were
hired directly in 2018 - our highest ever record,
significantly reducing external recruitment
costs.

Diversity and Inclusion

The Group is committed to ensuring that the
working environment is one where employees
feel valued, respected and able to contribute
their best to the success of the business

and to develop and grow themselves. Our
attraction and retention strategy is centred

on the premise that we recruit the best

people regardless of their background and

we are proud that we are known as an
excellent employer. Furthermore, we know
that the entire built environment sector

needs to become more representative of the
communities it serves. Our Gender Pay Report
can be viewed at https://www.careysplc.co.uk/
group/gender-pay-report. We have three
strands of focused activity to ensure that we
narrow the gender pay gap in the Group.

At Careys, we also strive to employ and
maintain a workforce that recognises and
respects the diversity of our clients. As part

of our ongoing dedication to becoming more
diverse, we have put in place a person-centred
hiring experience. Following a successful trial,
we are proud to have adopted a sophisticated
recruitment platform that uses behavioural
algorithms to strip bias out of the hiring
process, making it fairer and more objective.

Employee engagement

In 2018 we held roadshows across the UK that
were attended by over 600 employees. These
events offer the opportunity for employees

to hear from the leadership team about the
implementation of our strategy and vision. In
order to facilitate two-way communication,
‘question and answer’ sessions were held.
Employees who could not attend on the day
were aiso able to submit their questions.

We implemented our internal communication
strategy to include the regular making of short
films which we posted on our intranet. These
focus on colleague journeys, the progress of
key projects or best practice on health and
safety. Engagement with and feedback from
our people is vital to maintaining a sustainable
business and we do this through other formai
and informal ways.such as Yammer (software
helping employees connect and communicate
across the Group) where employees can raise
suggestions and give feedback. Directors
regularly carry out engagement tours of our
projects and sites to gain further insights and
to examine in particular our health and safety
performance.



6. Strategic Report

Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsibility

At the Carey Group, we are building a long-term
sustainable business - one that creates economic,
environmental and social value for our stakeholders,
upholds the highest safety standards, and promotes
diversity and inclusivity.

Careys Foundation

Careys Foundation was established in 2012 and
became a registered charity in 2015. Through the
activities of the Careys Foundation, we are able to
have a positive impact on the communities we work
in and around. We take considerable pride in the
Careys Foundation’s commitment and approach to
helping others, which is firmly grounded in the strong
Carey family values which have underpinned the
wider Group since 1968. The Foundation focuses its
efforts on three key areas - community, volunteering
and charity.

To date, the Foundation has contributed
approximately £1.5m to charitable and worthy
causes. We provided support to 247 charities in
2018. During the same year, Careys’ employees
collectively donated 738 volunteering hours and
participated in 82 charitable events.

Community

We believe in honouring, respecting and supporting
the communities we work within and alongside.

At all times, throughout each and every one of

our projects, we look to engage positively with the
community.

- One of the main ways in which we give back to the
communities in which we work is through the school
initiatives and educational projects that our teams
offer and help bring to life. For example, we helped
with construction at "The Acorn Centre”, a school

in Hertfordshire that provides emotional support

to young children who are either at risk or have
been permanently excluded from school, where
our project teams helped to build a temporary
structure on nearby, unused land creating a new
classroom and real educational environment for the
children to learn in. In addition, Carey Group teams
have selflessly given their time, skills and services
to transform and rejuvenate commmunity spaces

at numerous sites around the country, such as St
Raphael's Edible Garden in Brent, London.

Volunteering

Volunteering - offering our time and resources

to help improve the lives of others - reflects the
very heart of our value system. So, we provide
volunteering opportunities and support for all of
our employees to apply their skills oulside of the
workplace. Through our volunteering scheme, every
employee is entitled to one paid day of leave each
year that they can use to volunteer for a charity of
their choice.

Some of the ways in which Carey Group employees
have applied their efforts and talents to make a
difference and create a positive impact within local
communities include gardening, volunteering at
food banks and spending time with older people.
Through our volunteering activities, we have seen
first-hand that small gestures of support, provided
enthusiastically by thousands of people, can provide
incredible benefits for worthy causes.

Charity

We actively encourage and support all of our
employees to fundraise for charitable causes. Our
employees are keen to get involved. In fact some
of them have tackled tough obstacles - such as
mountain climbs and extreme races - in order to
raise awareness of and funds for charity.

One of the stellar events that we have long
participated in and now have the privilege to
sponsor - in order to fundraise for charity - is the
annual Construction Industry Adventure Race
(CIAR).

Through individual and team challenges such as
the CIAR, Careys Foundation has been able to raise
over £1.5m for a range of charities. In 2018/19. the
five charity partners that we have committed to
supporting are:

+  Breast Cancer Now

+  Evelina London Children’s Hospital
«  Alzheimer’s Society

+  Breast Cancer Ireland

»  Research Motor Neurone

in addition to its focus on three key areas -
community, volunteering and charity - the
Foundation also seeks to raise money through a
series of high-profile events and partnerships. One
such initiative saw Careys Foundation partnering
with Careys Plant & Fleet and Hitachi to purchase
a new Hitachi Zaxis 225 excavator, which we then
sprayed pink in order to raise awareness of and
funds for Breast Cancer Now.

10




Careys Foundation chose to name this piece of
heavy construction equipment ‘Hope'. We did
this in an effort to offer support to and highlight
Breast Cancer Now's aspiration and ambition
that, by 2050, everyone who develops breast
cancer will live and live well.

Throughout this year, Careys is putting the
highly visible and noticeable Hope to work at
various project sites across the UK, with the
goal of drawing attention to the objectives of
Breast Cancer Now. Also we will donate all

hire rate proceeds that Hope generates to this
worthy cause. Through Hope, and various other
fundraising events, Careys Foundation aims to
raise £50,000 for Breast Cancer Now.

Health, Safety, Environment and Quality
(HSEQ) Policy

At the Carey Group, we are not content merely
to comply with legislation - we insist upon
implementing the highest standards at all
times. Only in this way can we make certain that
we are doing all that we possibly can to look out
for our team members’ safety and wellbeing.
This approach reflects and furthers our ongoing
commitment to be the best in the world at all
that we do.

Careys visual standards

In order to adhere to the high levels of

health and safety, environment and quality
practice that we demand, we have creoted

a comprehensive set of common guidelines
and visual standards, in the form of Computer
Generated Images (CGls) . These must be
followed on all of our sites and across every one
of our workspaces.

Careys visual standards provide all our
operational teams with highly detailed images
that give them the ability to create a controlled
and safe environment on-site and within our
offices. Additionally, we have created a free-to-
download app. which makes it easier to access
and review this vital information.

In order to strongly support our more in-depth
or high-risk works, we employ the latest digital
techniques, including Building Information
Modelling (BIM), to design and generate
pictorial Risk Assessments and Method
Statements (RAMS), 3D models and fly-through
videos. This allows us to analyse and break
down very complex procedures into easily
absorbed information that our site teams can
more easily understand and safely carry out.

Robust occupational health programme

To help achieve our unwavering goal of
safeguarding the health and wellbeing of

our employees - and those that work with or
alongside the Carey Group - we have created
a pro-active occupational health programme.
This programme enables us to:

-+ Trial and confirm the effectiveness of the
‘safe systems of work’ control measures we
have put in place

+  Protect our people from hazards

- Flag any changes in team members’ health,
long before they can cause long-term
health consequences

The importance of taking care of mental health
issues has, at long last, been recognised within
our industry. At the Carey Group, in order to
actively address this crucial healthcare element,
we have assigned and trained dedicated
Mental Health First Aiders. We have also
created an Employee Assist Programme, which
allows our people to get the help they need, as
required.

Before deploying any new products on our sites,
Careys plant and innovation forum trials them,
in order to make sure that they are as safe and
efficient as possible. In this way we are able

to decrease the levels of risk and potential for
harm that our people face.

The Carey Group operates a certified health,
safety, environment and quality (HSEQ)
integrated management system (IMS), which

is independently reviewed by an external

UK accreditation service (UKAS) registered
organisation. This approach helps us to ensure
that our own internal, pro-active and re-active
monitoring systems remain robust, as we
implement them across the Group. It also allows
us to quickly identify and rectify any residual
areas in need of improvement. We actively

take note of — and publicise within the Group -
lessons learnt from incidents. This offers us an
invaluable tool to prevent similar issues. We take
these lessons learnt and use them to produce a
series of health and safety initiatives, such as:

+  Safe Home Every Day 'SHED Talks’ - videos
that amplify the processes and procedures
that we have formulated as a result of
lessons learnt from particular incidents

- Safety Alerts

- Standdowns on site

All of this information is available to everyone

in the business on Careys Connect, our intranet
system. It is also publicised on Yammer, our
internal social media platform. We also utilise
Yammer to promote and reward the great work
that our people are completing on behalf of the
Carey Group. Posts and interactions on Yammer
bring us together as o community and act as
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an incentive for us to continuously improve our
standards. This is a key part of our “invest in
better every day” mindset, which is one of the
central components of our vision and strategy.

Daily Access Briefings (DABs) and Golden

Hour sessions (during which project managers
and team members walk the site and

discuss issues and solutions) enable our site

. management teams to closely interact with our
site operatives and stay up-to-date on every
aspect of project operations each and every
day. These valuable interactions allow all of our
people - from leadership to team members -
to regularly connect with one another and deal
with any issues that may arise, as they come
up. This allows us to pro-actively address and
solve potential challenges. before they can
escalate and cause harm to our people or the
environment.

At the Carey Group, we firmly believe that
training and developing our people is
paramount to our continued growth and
success. For this reason, our extensive learning
and development programmes do not solely
focus on compliance training, but also provide
behavioural and functional training as well.

SHED, our behavioural safety programme - -
clearly lays out our baseline approach to health
and safety, which is based on everyone looking
out for their own safety and the safety of their
colleagues. We make sure that all of our people
become familiar with SHED and enact it in all of
their day to day activities.

In tandem with SHED, we also apply
behavioural science principles in order to
examine and control the environments in

which we function through the adoption of
smarter, safer working techniques, practices

or equipment. This approach gives us the
caopability to project and plan out all aspects of
our activities and working environment, in order
to significantly reduce the amount of risk thot
our people are exposed to on a daily basis.

We also provide our people with the functional,
on-the-job specific and highly detailed, task-
specific training that will help then to not only
stay healthy and safe, but also attain all the
skills, knowledge and expertise they need to
excel and be the very best within our industry.

Riddor injuries (like for like) on all group
contracts were 16 with an accident frequency
rate of 0.17.

At the Careys, we are well aware that the
success of our HSEQ programme and training
procedures - as well as the realisation of our
vision and strategy and goal of being the
world's best —can only be achieved through the
dedication, professionalism and efforts of the
people we attract, train and develop.

Sustainability

We have developed and implemented a set

of sustainable processes and behaviours that
are central to everything that we do. In fact,
sustainability forms a critical component within
the Carey Group's decision-making process. To
us, it's not enough to just do things differently

- we intend to do them better. That means
considering carefully the future impact of all our
activities and policies.

In 2018/19, after conducting an in-

depth review, we launched a Group-wide
sustainability strategy, which focuses on five
key components that are applicable to all areas
of the Carey Group. The aim of this initiative

is to make sure that we include a focus on
sustainability in all that we do.

The five core pillars of our sustainability
strategy are:

People

Without our people, we wouldn't be able to
do alt the amazing things that we do. We're
working to ensure that our workforce is safe,
healthy and inclusive, and that we constantly
give them the support they need to be their
best.

Communities

We want to positively engage with the
communities we work in and around, in order to
make a great, lasting impact.

Nature

We are committed to doing our part to protect
the environment and natural resources from
degradation and pollution. It is also our goal

to do whatever we can to improve the natural
surroundings whenever possible.

Materials and Waste

We source materials and products that are
ethically produced and have a sustainable life.
Additionally, we will do everything in our power
to minimise our waste.

Carbon

We are actively reducing our carbon footprint
through investing in smarter technology. and
plant and fleet purchases.
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6. Strategic Report

Key Financial Indicators

2019 2018 % change
£ £

Contracting turnover 527,076.871 452,931,975 16.37%
Property turnover 25,123,673 32,768,027 -23.33%
Waste turnover 23,127,501 24,775,552 -6.65%
Total turnover 575,328,045 510,475,554 12.70%
Operating profit 2,488,883 19,598,471 -87.30%
Profit before tax 1,572,525 18,678,921 -91.58%
Profit/(Loss) after tax - (1,642.850) 15,979.569 -110.28%
Equity shareholders' funds 97.762.500 97.261.499 0.52%
Average number of employees 1,506 1,364 10.41%

Analysis of Key Financial Indicators

Group turnover increased by 12.7% to £575.3m,
primarily reflecting an increase in the volume
of work delivered by our largest UK contracting
division P.J. Carey (Contractors) Limited.

Gross Profit for the Group has decreased by
28% to £55.6m, this reduction is primarily

a result of the disappointing performances

of our Irish contracting and UK demolition
companies. These two companies returned
an operating loss of £14.7m and £4.2m
respectively. These losses were attributable to
four significantly under-performing contracts.
Given the quantum of these contractual
losses on the performance of the Group for
the year, we have separated them out in our
Profit and Loss Account to assist the readers
in better appreciating the performance of the
Group before the impact of these contracts is
reflected. We have taken swift and decisive
action in ring-fencing the issues within these
two companies.

The reduction in our pre-tax profit to £1.57m
again reflects the unacceptable performance
in our Irish contracting company and our UK
demolition company , without these exceptional
items the pre-tax profit would be £13.8m.

Other Operating Income for the Group
increased by 120% to £9.1m, this predominately
reflects the re-valuations undertaken across
our property portfolio of £7.5m.

The tax charge has increased in the year by
£0.5m (+19%). primarily due to the timing
differences arising on deferred tax.

Tangible Assets have increased in the yeor by
£10.2m (+16%) primarily due to an increase in
our existing property valuations of £8m.

Investment properties have increased in the
year by £6.4m, this net increase consists of a
reduction due to re-classification to Land and
Buildings of (E2m), and increases of £7.5m for
revaluations undertaken in the year and £1m of
additions in the year.

Debtors have increased by £16.1m (+19%) as
compared to prior year. This is in line with the
increased turnover generated primarily through
P.J. Carey (Contractors) Limited.

Movements in Cash in Bank is reflected through
the cashflow statement.

Short term creditors have increased by £28.6m
(+24%) , this is in line with an increase in normal
trading activities.

Long term creditors have decreased by £10.3m
(-47%) primarily due to the repayments of Bank
loans and transfer of bank loan from long term
liabilities to short term liabilities.



6. Strategic Report
Group Companies Update

PJ Carey (Contractors) Limited (Registered
in the UK) - (Careys Civil Engineering)

PJ Carey (Contractors) Limited (Registered in
the UK) has a proven track record of delivering
projects that enhance the built and natural
environments, communities and infrastructure
of the UK. Our teams have played an integral
part in the construction of basements and
superstructures, developing inspirational
landscapes and building reliable infrastructure
across a wide range of sectors.

PJ Carey (Contractors) Limited (Registered

in the UK) continues to exhibit the behaviours
defined in the Group's strategy and vision. The
team constantly strives to improve processes
and methods of working, and their approach
to health and safety is widely recognised as
industry-leading. We are constantly looking

to elevate the brand and our position in the
market. '

PJ Carey (Contractors) Limited (Registered in
the UK) delivered revenue for year ending 31st
March 2013 of £388.5m (2018: £302m) and

an operating profit of £16.3m (2018: £15.0m).

Our forward order book remains strong with
£253m of secured work for 2018/20 with blue-
chip clients which include All England Lawn
Tennis & Croquet Club, CNIM, Siemens and the
London Development Agency and our forecast
turnover for next financial year remains at
£420m.

Careys Design Team Limited - (Careys
Design Team)

Careys Design Team Limited enable our clients
to take projects from a digital concept to
reality. Our collaborative approach to working
removes risk and provides our clients with full
reassurance in the integrity of crucial design
elements for their projects.

PJ Carey (Contractors) Limited (Registered in
the UK) profile in the marketplace continues

to be enhanced by Careys Design Team
Limited, which provides digital engineering and
technical expertise to customers at the design
and risk-review stage of a project. The fully
integrated offering brought by Careys Design
Team Limited and PJ Carey (Contractors)
Limited (Registered in the UK) in end-to-end
design and build is proving attractive to many
customers who want a one-stop-shop for their
project design and delivery.

Formed in 2015, Careys Design Team Limited
now employ 34 employees and whilst being
predominately internally facing, delivered

revenue for year ending 31st March 2019

of £2.6m (2018: £2.0m) and an operating
profit of £0.2m (2018: £0.2m). We are highly
encouraged by the impact this team is having
through their delivery of excellence and the
significant role they will play in the future,
positively impacting the complexity of projects
the Group targets and strengthening our
platform for continued growth.

T E Scudder Limited - (Scudder Demolition)

T E Scudder Limited is a specialist contractor
with extensive experience of delivering complex
demolition, deconstruction and civils enabling
works for multiple sectors across the UK. Our
long-standing history has embedded a deep
understanding of delivering works in a range of
environments and enables us to provide clients
with an expert understanding of demolition to
deliver works safely and effectively.

The way the T E Scudder Limited's team is
integrating with ION Environmental Solutions
Limited and PJ Carey (Contractors) Limited
(Registered in the UK) is first-class. The teams
are working seamlessly together towards a
collective end goal and the integrated project
model is working well.

In 2018 a conscious decision was made to
target and deliver civil engineering projects
which included complex demolition and/or
asbestos removal requirements as PJ Carey
(Contractors) Limited (Registered in the UK). to
better leverage the compilementary services of

the Group through an integrated project model.

This approach has resulted in excess of £30m
of demoalition related works being reported
within PJ Carey (Contractors) Limited's
(Registered in the UK) turnover as they took
the lead in bidding and are managing the
delivery of these major projects. This approach
has been continued in 2013/20 as we bid for
further works.

T E Scudder Limited delivered revenue for year
ending 31st March 2019 of £38.2m (2018:
£46.0m) and an operating loss of (£4.2m)
(2018: £3.2m). Losses are predominately
attributable to the performance of two
demolition contracts which were cautiously
valued and are now substantially complete.
We are now committed to working with each
client to recover our full entitlement through
the mechanisms of the contract and expect
to close out these issues and see T E Scudder
Limited return to gross profit in 2019/20.
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Seneca Environmental Solutions Limited -
(Seneca Resource Recovery)

Seneca Environmental Solutions Limited is

a leading UK waste and resource recovery
company specialising in the production,
brokerage and international export of refuse
derived fuel (RDF). Seneca is now one of the
UK's largest RDF exporters and has firmly
established itself as a trusted fuel supply
partner to several of Europe’s leading Energy
from Waste (EfW) plants.

The Seneca Environmental Solutions Limited
team understands and exhibits the behaviours
defined by the Group’s strategy and vision

.and are working hard to improve their
facilities, operational processes and working
environment.

Seneca Environmental Solutions Limited's
delivered revenue for year ending 31st March
2019 of £26.9m (2018: £27.4m) and an
operating profit of £0.6m (2018: £1.6m). This

is the result of reduced gate receipts, which
have been compounded by decreased offtake
capacity, partially due to line closures at energy
from waste (EfW) facilities in the EU market.

Seneca Environmental Solutions Limited has
however, secured a number of new clients and
won a renewable RDF offtake contract with a
client in Germany.

ION Environmental Solutions Limited
(formally TES Asbestos Solutions Limited) -
(ION Environmental)

ION Environmental Solutions Limited provide
excellence in asbestos identification and
removal. As a full-service, licensed asbestos
removal contractor, we specialise in delivering
compliant and high-quality solutions which
meet the needs of our clients across the UK.

The work being carried out by ION
Environmental Solutions Limited across all
sites is of the highest standards and clients
are seeing them as a reliable and professional
addition to the Carey Group and the integrated
project model. The team recently passed

their ARCA audit with flying colours and ofter
securing a three-year license are now building
their reputation and order book which is in its
healthiest shape to date.

ION Environmental Solutions Limited delivered
revenue for year ending 31st March 2018 of
£2.2m (2018: £2.6m) and an operating loss of
(£0.1m) (2018: (E1.0m)).

Their early involvement in construction projects
will provide the Group with timely insights into
potential new contract opportunities for other
parts of the Group.

BDL Group plc - (BDL Dry Lining)

BDL Group plc is one of the largest specialist
dry lining contractors in the UK. Contracts are
delivered through commercial and residential
divisions, with services including drywall
suspended ceilings and plaster finishes, and
bathroom fit-out packages.

Following the appointment of Lee Daniels to
the position of Managing Director, Lee has
empowered his team to lead their respective
areas of the company and has created an
open and colluboralive environment where
the team constantly pushes for improvements
through process and work-winning.

BDL Group plc are widely regarded as a
leading dry lining company and delivered
revenue for year ending 31st March 2019 of
£78.9m (2018: £86.3m) and an operating
profit of £1.1m (2018: £3.1m).

BDL Group plc have a strong order book for
next financial year, which includes £65m of
secured work-in-hand with several blue-
chip clients including Google, St George and
Skanska.

PJ Carey (Contractors) Ltd (Registered
in Ireland) - (Careys Building & Civil
Engineering)

PJ Carey (Contractors) Ltd (Registered in Ireland)
delivers an extensive range of engineering,

build and construction services for public and
private sector clients across the Republic and
Northern Ireland. We focus on project safety,
performance and quality utilising our knowledge
and experience across a range of sectors.

The performance of the Irish business has fallen
below the expectations of the Shareholders and
resulted in a strategic review being undertaken
within the year. This review has resulted in a
number of immediate actions being implemented
whilst the current delivery teams are supported
to continue to deliver the work in accordance with
our values and the Carey Way.

PJ Carey (Contractors) Ltd (Registered in Ireland)
delivered revenue for year ending 31st March
2019 of €36.1m (2018: €28.4m) and an operating
loss of (€16.7m) (2018: €0.9m)

Losses are predominately attributable to the
performance of two contracts, works to these
contracts will be substantially completed in
Quarter 2 2019. We are now committed

to working with the client to recover our full
entitlement through the mechanisms of the
contract and expect to close out these issues and
see PJ Carey (Contractors) Ltd (Registered in
Ireland) return to gross profit in 2018/20.
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Careys New Homes Limited (formally
Maxplan Properties Limited) - (Careys New
Homes)

Careys New Homes Limited is a home
builder that specialises in creating new build
developments in desirable locations across
Southern England. We pride ourselves on
building premium quality, contemporary
homes that create communities,
developments and great environments for
people to live and enjoy life.

In 2018 the decision was made to restructure
Careys New Homes Limited and set a new
direction for the business. To achieve this in
2018 and onwards, we have been working with
a development company who are supporting
us to shape a fresh business model for Careys
New Homes Limited.

Careys New Homes Limited delivered revenue
for year ending 31st March 2019 of £23.3m
(2018: £26.2m) and an operating profit of
£6.3m (2018: £1.5m). '

Whilst the market has slowed, due to the
uncertainty of the political market, the sales
team is in the process of building a strong
pipeline of future reservations.

Careys New Homes Limited has a
development land bank of £47.6m, securing
a positive future and the ability to help shape
the communities we create in years to come.

PJ Carey Plant Hire (Oval) Limited (Careys
Plant & Fleet)

PJ Carey Piant Hire (Oval) Limited continues
to remain the cornerstone of our self-delivery
model, maintained a fleet of over 750 vehicles
and more than 2,500 items of plant providing
cost-effective solutions for our clients.

PJ Carey Plant Hire (Oval) Limited delivered
revenue for year ending 31st March 2019 of
£42.5m (2018: £37.3m) and an operating
profit of £0.5m (2018: £0.Sm).

Careys Shared Equity Limited
Mortgage Provider

Turnover £0.0m (2018: £0.2m) profit £0.0m
(2018: £0.1m)

Careys 35 Baird Street Limited
Property management services

Turnover £0.3m (2018: £0.1m) profit £1.0m
(2018: £0.1m)

Careys 1 Hand Axe Yard Limited
Property management services

Turnover £0.6m (2018: £0.2m) profit £3.4m
(2018: £0.1m)

Careys Estates Doon (Registered in
Ireland)

Property development company

Turnover €2.0m (2018: €7.3m) profit €0.0m
(2018: €1.0m)

Careys Environmental Services Limited
(Registred in Ireland)

Property development company

Turnover €0.0m (2018: €0.0m) profit/loss
(€0.3m) (2018: €0.2m)
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6. Strategic Report
Risk

Risk

The principal risks inherent in the Group's business model, include:

« Interest rate risk

- Creditrisk

- Liquidity risk

« Currency risk

- Health and safety risk
- Competitive risk

« Project delivery risk

- Ability to appoint and retain talented people

- Defined benefit pension scheme liability
- IT systems, data and cyber security risks
» Political uncertainty

Interest Rate Risk

The Carey Group borrows at both fixed.and
variable rates of interest, in order to finance

our purchases of development sites and fixed
assets. Interest rate increases necessarily create
a negative cashflow impact. This may affect the
viability of speculative projects, since all of our
development finance is based on variable rates.

Mitigation - By monitoring key ratios, such as
interest cover and loan-to-value percentages,
itis possible to manage this risk. As part of the
viability analyses that we routinely carry out
on prospective development sites, we factor
in potential rate increases to stress test the
results.

Because the Carey Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to manage
this risk, it is not necessary to apply any hedge
accounting.

Creditrisk

If our customers prove unable to pay our
accounts as they fall due, this poses a risk to the
Group.

Mitigation - We have implemented policies
that require credit checks on potential
customers, before contracts can be entered
into. In particular cases, when if a customer's
net worth fails to satisfy our financial credit
requirements, we may request the provision of
further financial securities, in order to bolster
our credit position. In respect to our already
active contracts, we employ on-going strong
credit and cash flow management across the
Group.

Liquidity risk

The Carey Group funds its operating activities
through retained profits, overdraft and fixed
term bank borrowings. Therefore, changes in any
of these elements could cash flow and liquidity
impacts.

Mitigation - Our finance team actively
monitors and stress tests our cash flow
projections, as part of our cash flow
maintenance routine. We maintain close
communication with the Group’s bankers, in
order to ensure that the Group has sufficient
available working capital for its operations

- both present and future. We also employ
strong credit and cash flow management with
all of our active contracts. Additionally, the
Board regularly reviews our funding conditions
and arrangements. ‘

Currencyrisk

Because the Carey Group maintains operations
in the Republic of Ireland, we have transactions,
which are denominated in € Euro currency.
These transactions equate to 5% of our turnover.

Mitigation - The Group manages this risk by
using € Euro income to pay € Euro expenses.

One of the Carey Group's companies - Seneca
Environmental Solutions Ltd - is exposed

to foreign exchange transaction risk. This is
because its cash flows may be adversely
affected by movements in exchange rates that
will increase the GBP Sterling value of foreign
currency payables.
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Mitigation - Seneca manages this foreign
exchange transaction risk through the use of
hedging instruments, such as forward contracts.
The primary purpose of this hedging activity is to
mitigate risks and achieve the budgeted translation
rate.

Health and safety risk

Our Group of companies operate in locations

and environments with elements that have the
potential to cause serious injury to our direct staff,
subcontractors, customers or members of the
general public.

Mitigation - We have a robust integrated
management system, which is certified to ISO900L1,
14001 and OHSASI800L. Our operational teams
use their knowledge, training and experience to
implement these approved systems and follow the
hierarchy of risk control (eliminate, reduce, isolate,
control), in order to mitigate risk. The success of our
mitigation strategy relies on our detailed planning
of safe systems of work, our proper deployment

of these plans and our constant monitoring of

their effectiveness. We monitor these systems

both proactively - through internal and external
audits, and inspections - and reactively, through
conducting accident, incident and near-miss
investigations. We are also committed to reducing
risk through regularly sharing improvements

and lessons learnt throughout the business. This
process is described in detail the "Plan, Do, Check,
Act” model, which is in widespread used throughout
the Carey Group.

Competitive risk

Itis well-known that the construction industry is
highly competitive. While factors such as experience,
quality and ability are taken into consideration by
potential clients at tender stage - price is usually
the predominant criteria in the contractor selection
process. We have to be competitive if we are to
successfully win new work.

Mitigation - At the Carey Group, we believe it

is important to 'know our value’ and to not sell
services below this value. As a result, we are very
selective about our tender process — we will only
target projects where we are certain that we can
effectively manage our costs and control risks,

in order to be assured that we can attain our
required margin. Even though price is a major
factor in the selection process across the industry,
we nevertheless continue to win repeat work from
clients. This is because they value the other benefits
we bring to a contract, such as our elevated
efficiency and consistently high level of quality.

We also reduce our competitive risk by offering an
extraordinarily diversified offering, which is relatively
rare in the UK construction industry.

Project Delivery Risk

Should circumstances result in any unexpected
project delays, this could expose the Group to
additional costs and litigation.

Mitigation - We apply a project-delivery risk
management process from the very earliest stage
of each project that we undertake. This consists of
checking and following up on a clear list of pre-
identified risks and opportunities - both common
and specific - which we have created from our
many years of project experience.

Our project-delivery risk management system
begins even before we have been awarded a
contract, when we receive the invitation to tender
(ITT). The ITT is passed to various departments
within our organisation, which conduct reviews of the
sections of the documents that are relevant to their
areas of expertise.

Ability to appoint and retain talented people

The Carey Group's success relies heavily on our
ability to attract, retain and promote the success of
the right people, with the right skills, in the right role,
at the right time. If we fail to do this, we run the risk
of losing valued skills and capabilities. This could not
only impact our short-term performance, but also
seriously hamper our ability to grow the business as
according to our plans and goals.

Mitigation - In order to successfully realise Careys’
strategy and vision, in accordance with our values,
it is absolutely critical that we properly develop,
motivate and encourage the right behaviours from
our people and leaders.

In addition, whenever appropriate, we supplement
our internal skills by bringing in selected additional
resources. In these instances, we are careful that
those resources have the correct competencies we
require and share our values.

Defined benefit pension scheme liability

We are responsible for funding our defined benefit
pension scheme. Should our pension fund liabilities
increase, we would need to make additional pension
deficit payments, which would negatively impact our
working capital.

Mitigation - In addition to trustees appointed
from within the company, our defined benefit
pension scheme also has an independent third-
party trustee. In order to help them manage the
scheme’s investments, the trustees have employed
scheme advisors who guide them in implementing
an investment strategy that meets the objectives of
the scheme. Funds are spread among a number of
providers, which are tasked with achieving capital
growth and diversification, whilst avoiding excessive
volatility. The trustees have pursued a balanced
approach to risk, in order to gain an increased
expectation of better returns. This methodology has
the added benefit of avoiding excessive reductions
in fund value, during periods of poor stock market
performance.

The scheme administrator produces an annual
calculation of the scheme’s liabilities so that the
trustees can monitor the scheme’s performance on
a regular basis.
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IT systems, data and cyber security risks

As with most other 21st-century businesses, the
Carey Group relies heavily on the correct functioning
of our IT network, in order to continue to trade
efficiently and effectively. As a result, any significant
damages to or breaches of our key systems could
severely curtail our project delivery capabilities.
Other potential, negative IT issues include the loss
of confidential data or the reduction or stoppage

of Group service functions. All of these IT-related
circumstances could cause substantial brand
damage.

Mitigation - We are dedicated to ensuring that all
Carey Group information systems are secure and
fully compliant with the requirements of the Data
Protection Act, the Computer Misuse Act and (at
the level of principles) the International Standard
for Information Security ISO270001:2005 and
GDPR. We also make it a priority to educate all

our employees about the need to maintain secure
systems and their specific responsibilities in this
areaq.

Political uncertainty

The impact of Brexit continues to create uncertainty
in the UK economy. This may result in clients delaying,
curtailing or cancelling proposed and existing
projects. It may also increase the level of counter-
party credit and potential currency risk faced by the
Group.

Mitigation

The Group continues to monitor the UK's progress
towards Brexit and will further review its plans to
respond to a range of potential scenarios. This
includes plans that cater for changes in market
conditions, complications with the movement
and availability of our workforce, pressure on the
supply chain, delays in delivery of materials and
components, changes in exchange rates and
pricing impact of increased tariff and commodity
costs. The Group has analysed the forward order
book and does not see a significant impact on
current or future projects. The Group does not
deliver any contract, projects or services to any
other country in the EU apart from our Irish
operations.

Approval of Strategic Report

The above information comes from the Carey

Group Annual Report, which has been drawn up
and presented in accordance with, and in reliance
upon, applicable English company law - in particular
Chapter 4A of the Companies Act 2006.

Please note that the Annual Report has been
prepared for the Group as a whole, and acts as @
strategic report for all subsidiaries.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on
behalf of the Board:
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7. Directors’ Report

YE 31st March 2019

The directors present their report with the financial statements of the company and the group for the year

ended 31 March 2018.

Dividends

An interim dividend of £3,000,000 was paid during the year (2018: £Nil) and the directors do not

recommend that a final dividend is paid.

Consolidated financial resuits

The group's key financial indicators were as follows:

2019 2018 % change
£ £

Contracting turnover 527,076,871 ‘452,931,975 16.37%
Property turnover 25,123,673 32,768,027 -23.33%
Waste turnover 23,127,501 24,775,552 -6.65%
Total turnover 575,328,045 510,475,554 12.70%
Operating profit 2,488,883 19,705,805 -87.30%
Profit before tax 1,572,525 18,678,921 -91.58%
Loss after tax (1,642,850) 15,979,569 -110.28%
Equity shareholders' funds 97,762,500 97.261.499 0.52%
Average number of employees 1,506 1,364 10.41%

Directors

The directors of the company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the

financial statements were:

Thomas Carey

Patrick Carey

John Carey

John Anthony Carey

Alan McCarthy

Paul Johnson

Denis Deacy - Resigned on 29th July 2018.
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Company Secretary

F O'Donnell

Political and charitable contributions

The group is proud to support a number

of charities in their vital work. Contributions
totalling £331,156 (2018: were £228,934)
made during the year. No political donations
were made during the year (2018: £nil).

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual report and the financial statements

in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law the directors have prepared
the group and parent company financial
statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law).

Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view .
of the state of affairs of the group and the
company and of the profit or loss of the group
for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to:

«  select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

+  make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

«  state whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;
and prepare the financial statements
on the going concern basis unless it
is inappropriate to presume that the
Company and the group will continue in
business.

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of
the company and the group and enable them
to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of

the company and the group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities

Directors’ confirmations

In the case of each director in office at the date
the Directors’ report is approved:

- Asfar as the director is aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the
company’s auditors are unaware; and

«  The director has taken all the steps that
he/she ought to have taken as a director
in order to make him/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish
that the company’s auditors are aware of

* that information.

Independent auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
will be proposed for re-appointment at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed
on behalf of the Board:
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8. Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Carey Group PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion o

In our opinion, Carey Group PLC’s group financial statements and company financial

statements (the “financial statements”):

- -give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 31
March 2018 and of the group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”, and applicable
low); and .

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Group Strategic Report.
Director's Report and Financial Statements (the "Annual Report”), which comprise: the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 201S; the
consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the consoclidated
statement of cash flows, and the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity
for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description
of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs
(UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. .

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

ISAs (UK) require us to report to you when:

- thedirectors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or
the directors have not disclosed in the financial stotements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the group’s and company’s ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve
months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not

a guarantee as to the group’s and company’s ability to continue as a going concern. For
example, the terms on which the United Kingdom may withdraw from the European Union
are not clear, and it is difficult to evaluate ail of the potential implications on the group’s trade,
customers, suppliers and the wider economy.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for

the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and. in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears

to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material
misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based
on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the
disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the
audit, ISAs (UK) require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given
in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2018 is consistent
with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the
Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 21, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The
directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. ‘

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s
and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located
on the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of
our auditors’ report.

Use of this report »
-This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s
members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and
for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. -
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Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
ertain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
the company financial statcments are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Lﬂu L

Andrew Latham (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behallf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Uxbridge
2"‘\September 2019



§ 9. Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

2019 Before . 2019 After
Exceptional 2019 Excepfloncl " Exceptional 2018
tems
ltems Items
Notes £ £ £ £
Turnover 4 540,302,681 35,025,364 575,328,045 510,475,554
Cost of sales (472,476,658) (47,272,550) (519,749,208) (433.343.654)
Gross profit 67,826,023 (12,247,186) 55,578,837 77.125.900
Administrative expenses (62,195,599) - (62,195,599) (61,656.880)
Other operating income S 9,105,645 - 9,105,645 4,129,451
Operating profit 7 14,736,069 (12,247,186) 2,488,883 18,598.471
Income from other
porticipating interests 79,382 - 79.382
!nterest receivable and similar 35,432 - 35,432 6.453
income
Interest payable and similar 8 (L031172) _ (1031172) (S26,003)
expenses
Profit before taxation 13,819,711 (12,247,186) 1,572,525 18,678.921
Tax on profit <] (3,215,375) - (3,215,375) (2,699.353)
,(r_L°'°'S)( profit after tax for the 10,604,336 (12,247.186) (1.642,850) 15,979,569
inancial year
Other comprehensive income
Actuarial (loss)/gain (1.402,000) - (1,402,000) 879.000
Retranslation of foreign (1.072,202) - (1.072,202) 486,351
subsidiaries
Revaluation of land and 8,910,186 8,910,186 2833565
buildings
Total tax on components of
other incomne (1,292,133) - (1,292,133) (673.543)
Other comprehensnye income 5.143,851 5143851 3505373
for the year, net of income tax
Total comprehensive income 15,748,187 (12,247,186) 3,501,001 19,504,942
for the year
(Loss)/Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent 10,604,336 (12,247,186) (1,642,850) 15,978,569
Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the parent 15,748,187 (12,247.186) 3,501,001 19,504,942
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9. Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018 Restated
Notes £ £
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 1 2,080,175 1144543
Tangible assets 12 73,299,621 63.073.967
Investments - Joint Venture 13 79,382 -
Investment property 14 26,150,000 19,800,000
101,608,178 84,018,510
Current assets
Stocks 15 57,176,188 59.029,245
Debtors 16 101,063,199 84,953,285
Investments 17 63,005 54,178
Deferred tax 1,981,420 13298.517
Cash at bank 5,617,433 15,106,379
165,901,245 160.472,604
Creditors
Amounts falling due within one year 18 (146,976,251) (118.361.808)
Net current assets 18,924,994 42,110,796
Total assets less current liabilities 120,534,172 126.129.306
Creditors
Amounts falling due after more than one year 19 (11.417.742) (21.724.532)
Deferred tax (5.912,930) (2.956,275)
Pension liability 23 (5.441,000) (4.187,000)
Net assets 97,762,500 97.261,499
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 22 250,000 250,000
Revaluation reserve 16,511,165 7,895,329
Other reserves 2,953,891 2,953.891
Retained earnings 78,047.444 86.162.279
Shareholders' funds 97.762,500 97.261.499

The financial statements on pages 25 to 54 were approved by the Board of Directors on

.and were signed

The prior yéor comporotlvé balance sheets have been restated for presentation purposes.
The notes on pages 32 to 54 form part of these financial statements

17/’/20/7
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9. Financial Statements
Company Statement of Financial Position

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Notes 2019 Rest%(tjég
£ £
Fixed assets
Investments 13 2,001,356 2,001,304
2,001,356 2,001,304
Current assets -
Debtors . 16 79,676,601 73,830,828
Deferred tax 927574 711,966
Investments 17 5,000 5,000
Cash at bank 113,833 8,009
80,723,008 74,555,803
Creditors
Amounts falling due within one year 18 (1,780.360) (1.514.649)
Net current assets 78,942,648 73,041,154
Total assets less current liabilities . 80,844,004 75,042,458
Creditors
Amounts falling due after more 19 (71.494.228) (67.530.803)
than one year
Pension liability . 23 (5.441,000) (4,187,000)
Net assets 4,008,776 3,324,655
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 22 250,000 250,000
Retained earnings ' 3758776 3,074,655
Shareholders' funds 4,008,776 3,324,655
Company's profit for the financial year 4,847,781 10,193

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on  ........ ;(7 7347/7 and were
signed on its behalf by:

The prior year comparative balance sheets has been restated for presentation purposes.
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9. Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Called up Retained Revalution Other Total
share capital earnings reserve reserve equity
£ £ £ £ £
Balance at 1 April 2017 250,000 67673122 6.876.,661 2,956,774 77756,557
Changes in equity
Profit for the year - 15.879.568 - - 15,978.568
Other comprehensive income - 1470,588 2.057.668 (2.883) , 3.525.373
Reserves Transfer - 1038.000 (1.039,000) - -
Balance at 31 March 2018 250,000 86.162.279 7,895,329 2,953,891 97.261.498
Changes in equity
(Loss)/Profit for the year - (1.642.850) - - (1.642,850)
Other comprehensive income - (2.821.985) 7,965,836 - 5.143.851
Reserves Transfer - (650,000) 650,000 - -
Dividends Paid - (3.000.000) - - (3.000,000)
Balance at 31 March 2019 250,000 78,047,444 16,511.165 2,953,891 97.762.500
28
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9.  Financial Statements

Company Statement of Changes in Equity

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Called up Retained Total

share capital earnings reserve

£ £ £

Balance at 1 April 2017 250,000 2,334,892 « 2,584,892
Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income - 10193 10,193

Actuarial gain on pension - 729,570 729,570

Balance at 31 March 20i8 250,000 3,074,655 3,324,655
Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income - 4,847,781 4,847,781

Actuarial loss on pension - (1,163.660) (1163,660)

Dividends paid - (3.000,000) (3.000.000)

Balance at 31 March 2019 250.000 3,758,776 4,008,776
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9. Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Notes 2019 Restict)éi
£ £
Cash flows from operating activities 1

Cash generated from operations 13,245,796 13.204.855
Tax paid (2.659,986) (2.420.425)
Net cash from operating activities 10,585,810 10.784,430

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (4,640,367) (15.230,490)
Purchase of intangible fixed assets (958,309) Y(1,140,O37)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 685.625 308.286
" Purchase of investment property (916.526) -
Interest received 35,432 6.453
Net cash from investing activities (5.794,146) (18,054,788)

Cash flows from financing activities
Finance Lease Repayments (4.018,412) (3.528.759)
Proceeds from issue of Bank loan - 10.725.000
Repayment of Bank borrowing (6,212,359) (6.308.445)
Interest Paid (778,925) (654.166)
g\;igzlsgilzment of HP and Finance Lease (252.,247) (271.836)
Equity dividends paid (3,000,000) -
Net cash from financing activities (14,261,943) (38.206)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (9.470,279) (5308.564)
g:;:ac:nd cash equivalents at begin-ning 15,106,379 20.152.304
E;E?:c:\'gre‘tlgsses on Cash and cash (18.667) 262,641
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5,617,433 15,106,379

30




9. Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 31 March 2019

1. Reconciliation of (loss)/profit for the financial year to cash generated from operations

2012 Resti?ég
£
(Loss)/profit for the financial year (1,.642,850) 15,878,568
Tax on (Loss)/Profit 3,215,375 2.699,353
Net interest Expense 995,740 818,550
Income from other participating interests (79.382) -
Operating Profit - 2,488,883 19.598.471
Depreciation charges 8182166 6.748.489
Amortisation Charges 19,253 -
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (128.,753) (157.887)
Revaluation of investment properties (7.450,985) (3.215,000)
Revaluation of Investments (8.827) -
Foreign exchange difference a77 2,513
Defined Benefit Pensions Charge 572.000 132.000
COOpF::g;(ing Cashflows before movements in working 3.674.015 ?3.108,787
Working Capital Movements
Deficit to Pension Fund (720.000) (720.000)
Decrease in stocks 1788.115 2.513,048
Increase in trade and other debtors (18,780,066) (2.658.995)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other creditors 27.282,732 (8.037.986)
Cash generated from operating activities 13,245,796 13,204,855

It is our intention to provide accurate and informative financial statements that can be relied upon by our internal
and external stakeholders. Following an initial enquiry review letter from the Financial Reporting Council's Corporate
Reporting Review team we have engaged with them to ensure our Financial statements are in line with best
practice and we have welcomed their suggestions on improvements. Their review was limited to our filed Financial
Statements as they do not have a detailed knowledge of our business. Our treatment of finance leases within our
cashflow statement was an area they identified as needing updating to comply with requirements under FRS102.
We have opted to restate the comparative figures for last year to reflect these rules.

The effect of this has been the following:

Increase in net cash generated from operating activities of £663,362.
Reduction in net cash outflowing from investing activities of £4,791.668.
Reduction in net cash inflow from financing activist of £5,717.670.

The notes on pages 32 to 54 form part of these financial statements 31
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9. Fihancial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

1. Statutory information

Carey Group PLC is a leading family-owned engineering, construction and resource recovery business
operating across the UK and Ireland.

The Company is a private company limited by shares and is incorporated in England. The address of the
registered office is Carey House, Great Central Way, Wembley, Middlesex, HAS OHR.

2. Statement of compliance

The individual and consolidated financial statements of Carey Group Plc have been prepared in
compliance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards. including Financial Reporting Standard 102, "The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” ("FRS 102)
and the Companies Act 2006.

3. Accounting policies
Basis of preparing the financial statements
The financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of land and buildings, and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and
applicable accounting standards in the United Kingdom. The principal accounting policies, which have
been applied consistently throughout the year, are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the financial statements of Carey Group Plc and all of its subsidiary
undertakings (‘'subsidiaries’). Balances existing between group companies and transactions between
group companies during the year have been eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been adapted, where necessary, to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

group.
Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. The Directors
have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. The Group therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing its financial statements.

Turnover

Turnover comprises goods and services supplied during the period, exclusive of Value Added Tax and
trade discounts. Turnover is recognised on long term contracts as the activity progresses. Income is
accrued where the level of activity exceeds amounts invoiced to customers and income is deferred
where the level of activity is less than the amounts invoiced to that respective customer. The whole of
the turnover is attributable to general building and contract works. All turnover arose within the United
Kingdom and Irelond.

Long-term Contracts

Cash received on accounts of contracts is deducted from amounts recoverable on contracts. Such
amounts which have been received and exceed amounts recoverable are included in creditors. Contract
provisions in excess of amounts recoverable are included in provisions for liabilities and charges.
Amount recoverable on contracts are valued at anticipated net sales value of work done after provision
for contingencies and anticipated future losses on contracts.

32



‘J

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

3. Accounting policies - continued

Housing Revenue
Turnover is recognised at the date of Legal Completion on the house, apartment and ground rent sales.

Design Revenue
Turnover on design is recognised as the value of the service provided.

Waste management revenue
Turnover on waste management is recognised as the date the waste is delivered to the recycling site.

Intangible fixed assets and amortisation

The Group recognises an intangible asset as an asset if, and only if:
(@) it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to

the Group; and
(b) the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Amortisation is charged to administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss. Costs associated
with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment either annually if they have an indefinite useful life or on the
basis of any internal or external indicators of impairment as we amortise all intangible assets over their
useful lives.

The group evaluates whether an intangible asset needs to be written down by checking for any internal or

external indicators of impairment. If an impairment is found to exist, the Intangible assets are written down

to their recoverable amount. Any difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount is
charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates
caleulated to write off the cost or valuation of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their
expected useful lives on the following bases:

Freehold Property - straight line depreciation over S0 years

Freehold land - 0% per annum

Plant and machinery - 10 - 25% per annum reducing balance/straight line
Fixtures and fittings - 10 - 25% per annum reducing balance/straight line

Historically Carey Group depreciated their plant and machinery assets using a 25% reducing balance
method. In 2015 it was decided that all future plant and machinery acquisitions would be depreciated on
straight-line basis over 4 or S years.

At the same time, it was also decided that the existing plant and machinery assets would remain on the
reducing balance method as there were a large number of separate assets involved and we considered it
did not warrant the administration challenge of changing their individual depreciation charge set up and
any change would not significantly impact the depreciation charge recorded. The net book value of such
assets amounted to £2.6m as at the 31 March 2018. There is no material difference on the results for the
year from the depreciating these assets on a reducing balance, rather than a straight line basis.

Any unrealised surpluses or deficits arising on revaluation are taken directly to the revaluation reserve

a

except that any permanent deficit in excess of the revaluation reserve is charged to the statement of profit

and loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Eﬁded 31March 2019

3. Accounting policies - continued

In addition to systematic depreciation the book value of the tangible assets will be written down to
estimated recoverable amount should any impairment in the respective carrying values be identified.

The asset residual values, carry values and useful lives are reviewed on an annual basis and adjusted if
appropriate at each statement of financial position date.

Investments

Investments in subsididries are valued at cost less provision for impairment. Other investments, held as
fixed assets, are shown at cost less provision for impairment.

Investment Properties

Freehold properties are included in the financial statements based on valuations undertaken every year.
Unrealised surpluses or deficit arising in the year is charged to the profit and loss account. In accordance
with FRS 102, no depreciation is provided on freehold properties. The directors consider this accounting
policy is necessary for the financial statements to show a true and fair review.

The carrying vailues of investment properties are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Investments - Joint Ventures and joint operations

The Company applies section 15 of FRS102 to all joint arrangements. Investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint ventures or joint operations, depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor.

A joint venture is a contractual agreement whereby the Company undertakes an economic activity that is
subject to joint control with third parties and these parties have rights to the net assets of the arrahgement.
The Company'’s interests in joint ventures is accounted for using the equity method. Under this method

the Company’s share of profits less losses after taxation of joint ventures is included in the statement of
profit and loss and its interest in their net assets is included in investments in the statement of financial
position. Where the shares of losses exceeds the Company’s interest in the entity and there is no obligation
to fund these losses, the carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued.
Future profits are not recognised until unrecognised losses are extinguished. Where joint ventures do not
adopt accounting periods that are coterminous with the Company, results and net assets are based upon
unaudited accounts drawn up to the Company account reference date.

Inventories and work in progress

Inventories and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due
allowance for obsolete and slow moving stocks. Cost is calculated as follows:

Raw materials, consumables and goods for resale are valued at purchase cost on a first in, first out basis.

Work in progress on development sites are valued at cost of direct materials and labour plus attributable
overheads.

Work in progress on development properties includes undeveloped.land and land under development. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling prices less all estimated costs of completion.

The group continues to monitor the performance of its development sites and, where appropriate, obtain
independent professional valuations. Any excess of carrying amount over the selling price less cost to sell is
charged immediately in the statement of profit and loss as an impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

3. Accounting policies - continued
Foreign currency

- Functional and presentation currency
The Group and Company'’s financial statements are presented in pounds sterling.
- Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using average exchange rates for
the period. as this reasonably approximates the exchange rates at the actual dates of the transactions. At
each period end, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the translation
at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the profit and loss account, within Administrative Expense.

- Translation

The trading results of Group undertakings are translated into sterling at the average exchange rates for
the year. The assets and liabilities of overseas undertakings are translated at exchange rates ruling at the
year end. Exchange adjustments arising from the retranslation of opening net investments and from the
translation of the profits or losses at average rates are recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Income:

Taxation

Taxation expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting period.
Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Current or deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not discounted.
« Current tax

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the
year or prior years. Tax is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the period end. .

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

- Deferred tax

Deferred tax arises from timing differences that are differences between taxable profits and total
comprehensive income as stated in the financial statements. These timing differences arise from the
. inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are
recognised in financial statements.

Deferred tox is recognised on all timing differences at the reporting date. Unrelieved tax losses and other
deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is probabile that they will be recovered against the reversal
of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits. To provide greater visibility to deferred tax balances
they are separated out in the statement of financial position. Comparative figures have been restated to
accord with this presentation.

Deferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
period end and that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

Employee benefits

The Group provides a range of benefits to employees, including annual bonus arrangements, paid holiday
arrangements, and defined benefit (closed to new members) and defined contribution pension plans.
Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits are recognised as an

expense in the period in which service is received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

3. Accounting policies - continued
Pensions

The company participates in two defined contribution pension schemes for certain directors and
employees respectively which are funded by the payment of contributions to a separately administered
fund. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the company in an independently
administered fund. Contributions are charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which they
become payable.

The company also participates in the Carey Group Plc Pension Scheme, a multi-employer defined benefit
pension scheme which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The scheme
ceased future pension accrual for active members from 31 March 2006 and became paid up. The assets
of the defined benefit pension scheme are held separately from those of the company in an independently
managed fund. The scheme is accounted for by the company as if it were a defined contribution scheme as
outlined in note 23 to the financial statements.

Claims and retentions receivable

No account is taken of claims submitted or to be submitted on completed contracts until revenue in respect
of the claims is received. Revenue from the release of retention monies is similarly recognised only when
received.

Leasing and hire purchase

Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts and finance leases are capitalised as tangible fixed assets.
Assets acquired by finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.
Assets acquired by hire purchase are deprecioted over their useful lives. Finance leases are those where
substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership are assumed by the company. Obligations under
such agreements are included in creditors net of the finance charge allocated to future periods. The finance
element of the rental payment is charged to the Profit and loss account so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of charge on the net obligation outstanding in each period.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged in the profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the
lease term. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are recognised on
straight line basis over the period until the date the rent is expected to be adjusted to the prevailing market
rate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown in current liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Exceptional Items

The group presents, on the face of the consolidated statement of profit and loss, those items of income and

expense which because of the nature and/or magnitude of the events giving rise to them, merit separate
presentation to allow readers to better understand financial performance in the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

3. Accounting policies - continued
Distributions to equity holders

Dividends and other distributions to the Group's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends and other distributions are approved by the shareholders.
These amounts are recognised in the statement of changes in equity.

Related party transactions

There are transactions within the Group, which are eliminated on consolidation. These transactions are
reported in the individual company financial statements and are on terms negotiated between the two
entities.

Borrowing costs

Al borrowing costs are recognised in the profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account in the period in which it is received.

Financial instruments

The Company has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS102 in respect of financial instruments.

Basic financial liabilities, including amounts owed to group undertakings, are initially recognised at
transaction price. Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method.

Critical occounfingjudgements and estimation uncertainty - continued

under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about the carrying
value of assets and liabilities which are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual result may differ
from the estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Material estimates and assumptions are made in particular with regards to establishing the following
policies:

@) Estimation of costs to complete and contract provisions.

In order to determine the profits and loss that the Group is able to recognises on its developments and
construction contracts in a specific period, the Group has to allocate total costs of the developments and
construction contracts between the proportion completing in the period and the proportion to complete in
a future period. The assessment of the total costs to be incurred and final contract value requires a degree
of estimation, as does the assessment of a development’s valuation.

However, Group management has established internal controls to review and ensure the appropriateness
of estimates made on an individual contract basis, including any necessary contract provisions. Amounts
recoverable on construction contracts are disclosed in note 16.

The estimation of final contract value includes assessment of recovery of variations which have yet to be
greed with the client, compensation events and claims, where these meet the criteria set out in the Group's
accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

3. Accounting policies - continued

@i Retirement benefit obligation valuations

In determining the valuation of defined benefits schemes’ assets and liabilities, a number of key
assumptions have been made. The key assumptions, which have given below, are largely dependent

on factors outside the control of the Group:

Inflation rate;
Life expectancy:;
Discount rate; and

Salary and pension growth rates.

The group is exposed to risks through its defined benefit schemes if actual experiences differs from
the assumptions used and through volatility the plan assets. Details of the assumptions used, and

associated sensitivities, are included in note 23.

4. Turnover

Analysis of Turnover by Geography 2012 2012
United Kingdom 542,143,235 479,464,692
Ireland 33,184,810 31,010.862
Total 575,328,045 510,475,554
Analysis of Turnover by Category 2012 2012
Contracting 527,076,871 452931875
Property Development 25,123,673 32,768,027
Waste Recycling 23,127,501 24,775,552
Total 575,328,045 510,475,554
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

5. Other operating income

2019 2018
£ £
Sundry Income 158,688 -
Rental Income 1,268,956 914,451
Profit on sale of fixed assets 128,753 -
Revaluation of Investment Property 7,548,249 3,215,000
9,105,645 4,129,451
Rental Income

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases is:
Basis 2019 2018
£ £
Less than 1 year 1,394,473 1,008,638
Between 1 and S years 3,772,020 1,808,000
Greater than S years 1,670,453 1,908,000

No contingent rents were recognised as income during the year. The leasing arrangements included a
3-month rent free period if 10-year break is not exercised. The leasing arrangements are reviewed after
every S years and a mutual break option at the end of the 10 year. The leasing arrongements contain the

mutual break option at the end of the 10 years provided that a 12-month notice has been given.

6. Employees and directors

The average monthly number of employees during the year was as follows:

2019 2018

Administration 250 225
Managerial 516 513
Technical 346 316
Operations 394 310
1506 1364

2018 2018

£ £

Woages and salaries 81,360,753 63.549.924
Social security costs 13,955,118 8115,515
Other pension costs 3,196,859 1577787
Staff costs 98,512,730 79,243,226
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

6. Employees and directors - continued

2018 2018
£ £
Directors' remuneration 2,290,886 4,435,505
The number of directors to whom retirement benefits were accruing was as follows:
Money purchase schemes 3 3
The remuneration of the highest paid director for the year was £403,242 (2018: £502.501).
7. Operating profit
The operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):
2019 2018
£ £
Depreciation 8,182,166 5.793.052
Amortisation 19,253 2.907
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (128,753) (118,100)
Fees payable to the auditor's
in respect of group’s annual accounts 170,000 182,400
Taxation compliance services 43,000 43,000
Foreign exchange differences 256,833 (50.185)
8. Interest payable and similar expenses
2019 2018
£ £
On bank loor\s.‘overdroft and other loans wholly 778,849 654167
repayable within S years
On finance leases and hire purchase contracts 252,323 271,836
1031172 926,003
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -~ continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

9. Taxation
Analysis of tax charge in the year
2019 2018
£ £
Current tax (see note below)
UK corporation tax charge on profit for the year 2,220,627 3197630
Foreign tax suffered 4,387 2.481
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (23,115) (1.858.587)
Foreign tax adjustment in respect of prior periods 859 -
Other/Rounding's - 2
Total current tax 2,202,758 1,341,526
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences 1,086,174 S14.451
Effect of changes in tax rates (114,335) (54.154)
Adjustment in respect of prior years 40,778 897.53(5
1,012,617 1357827
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 3,215,375 2,699,353
Analysis of tax charge in the year included in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax
FO);—]gsi:)ontilci)gbiirtm? timing differences on (238.340) 149430
Origination and timing differences on revaluation 1,530,473 524113
Origination and timing differences 1,292,133 673.534
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

9. Taxation - continued
Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year is higher than (2018: higher than) the standard rate of corporation tox in
the UK of 18% (2018: 18%). The differences are explained below:

2019 2018
£ £

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 1,572,525 18,678,921
rote of Corporation tox i the UK of 19% (2018, 16%) 298.779 3:548.994
Effects of:
Expenses nqt deduc_tiblg for tax purposes, other 561481
than goodwill amortisation and impairments 191,140 '
Income not taxable ' - (347.579)
Utilisation of tax losses 968,176 (224.488)
Effects of overseas tox rates 1 -
Adjgstments to tax charge in respect of prior 18,522 ' (9B1,055)
periods
Deferred tax not provided 1,853,103 121,702
Difference in tax rates (114,335) 300
Rounding’s 6)) @
Current tax charge for the year (see note above) 3,215,375 2.699.353

The effective tax rate is calculated at 204%. In relation to the current tax movements, the major
reconciling differences relate to the Irish companies losses in the period and the impact of the overseas
tax rate. The latter is the reduction to the Irish rate of tax, whilst the former exists as no deferred tax
asset is currently being recognised over the losses in the Irish entities. Removing the impact of the Irish
entities leads to an effective rate of tax of 19.6%, which is comparable to the corporate tax rate of 19%.
There are no material reconciling items to note.

The deferred tax liability in relation to fixed asset timing differences has increased from £2,.380.540

to £4,811125 in the period, a movement of £2,530.585. This is mainly driven by revaluations of both
investment property and freehold land and buildings booked in the period. Of particular note. this
includes a deferred tax charge of £1,020,000 to the P&L for the £6m revaluation of the investment
property within Careys New Homes, and a further £1,513,473 deferred tax charge to OClI for freehold
land and building revaluations within P.J. Carey (Contractors), Seneca Environmental Solutions, Careys 1
Hand Axe Yard and Careys 35 Baird Street.

42



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Q. Taxation - continued

The deferred taxation asset recognised in the financial statements is as follows:

2012 Resti?cleg
£
Short term timing differences 52,044 41,810
Non-trading timing differences 927.571 711873
Accelerated capital allowances (4,911,125) (2.380,540)
(3,831,510) (1.626.,757)
The deferrea taxation asset/(liability) not recognised in the financial statements is as follows:
2012 Restict)ég
£
Fixed Assets (801) 974
Timing differences - trading - 130
Timing differences - non - trading - 31
Tox losses carried forward (2,808,611) 121,728
(2.809,412) 122,863
Deferred tax recognised in the balance sheet:
2012 Restict)ég
B £
Provision at the start of the period (1.626.757) 404,613 '
Adjustment in respect of prior years in /S (40,778) (897.530)
Adjustment in respect of prior years in OClI (17,000) (42,407)
Deferred tax charge to I/S for the beriod (971,839) (460.297)
Deferred tax charge for OCI for the period (1,275.123) (631.1386)
At 31 March (3.931,507) ' (1.626.,757)

Tax rate changes

Changes to the UK corporation tax rates were substantively enacted as part of Finance Bill 2015 (on
26 October 2015) and Finance Bill 2016 (on 7 September 2016). These include reductions to the main
rate to reduce the rate to 17% from 1 April 2020. Deferred taxes at the balance sheet date have been

measured using these enacted tax rates and reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

10. individual statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Statement of Profit and loss and other
comprehensive income of the parent company is not presented as part of these financial statements.

11. Intangible fixed assets

Group
Development Computer Totals
cost software £
£ £
Cost
At 1 April 2018 1,140,037 18,763 1,158,800
Additions 958,310 - 958,310
Reclassification/transfer - 2,390 2.390
At 31 March 2019 . 2,098,347 21153 2.119,500
Amortisation
At April 2018 - 14,258 14,258
Amortisation for year 18,172 1,081 19,253
RecIossif{cction/tronsfer - 5.814 5.814
At 31 March 2018 18,172 21,153 39,325
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 2,080,175 - 2,080,175
At 31 March 2018 1,140,037 4,505 1,144,543
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

12. Tangible fixed assets
Group

. Freehold _ Fixtures,
Cost or valuation property Land fitting and Plont VTotoIs
and machinery
At 1 April 2018 23,577,671 18,182,339 50,852,289 92,612,299
Additions 2,052,566 - 5,981,007 8,033,573
Disposals - - (4.782,375) (4.782,375)
Revaluations 3,817,616 . 5,092,571 - 8,910,187
Reclassification/transfer 142,421 1,875,090 (2,390) 2,015,121
At 31 March 2018 29,590,273 25,150,000 52,048,531 106,788,805
Depreciation
At 1 April 2018 - - 29,538,335 29,538,335
Charge for year 490,273 - 7,691,893 8,182,166
Eliminated on disposal - - (4,225,503) (4,225,503)
Re-classification - - (5.814) (5.814)
At 31 March 2019 490,273 - 32,998,911 33,489,184
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 29,100,000 25,150,000 19,049,620 73,299,621
'At 31 March 2018 23,577,671 18,182,339 21,313.854 63,073,967
‘The net book value of assets held under finance leases or hire purchase contracts, included above, are
as follows:
2019 2018
£ £
Plant and machinery 10,280,832 9,618,542
If the land and buildings had not been included at valuation they would have been included under the
historical cost convention as follows:
2019 2018
£ £
Lond and buildings at cost 38,841,102 36.788.536
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

12. Tangible fixed assets - continued
Valuation of freehold properties

The Groups freehold and teasehold properties were valued on 31 March 20189, by an external valuer,
Andrew Barton MRICS, Registered Valuer of Gibbs Gillespie Surveyors Limited. The valuations are in
accordance with requirements of the RICS Valuation Standards (2017 edition) and any other regulatory
requirements.

The valuation of each property was on the following basis and assumptions:

1. For owner occupied property: valued to existing use value (EUV) assuming that the property would be
sold as part of the continuing business.

2. For Investment property valued to market value, assuming that the property would be sold subject to
any existing leases.

3. For surplus property and property held for development valued to market value, assuming that the
property would be sold with vacant possession in its existing condition.

The valuer's opinion of market value and existing use value was primarily derived using:

a) Comparable recent market transactions on arm’s length terms.

b) Using an estimate of the future potential net income generated by the use of the property.

¢) Using a residual method of valuation for development sites, reflecting the potential re-sale value of
the property and the costs associated with completing the development.

The valuation report has been prepared in accordance with current RICS Valuation Standards - Red
Book 2017. -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

13. Fixed Asset Investment

Joint Totals
Group Venture £
£
Profit
At1 April 2018 - -
Share of profit/(loss) 79,382 79,382
At 31 March 2019 79,382 79,382
Provisions
At 1 April 2018
and 31 March 2019 - -
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 79,382 79,382
At 31 March 2018 - -
Shares
Company undelrr:ogl:i‘r)\;z
£
Cost
At 1 April 2018 2,001,304
Additions Se
At 31 March 2018 2.001.356
Net book value
At 31 March 20139 2,001,356
At 31 March 2018 2,001,304
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

14. Investment property

Group Totolz
Fair value
At 1 April 2018 19,800,000
Additions 916,526
Revaluations 7,450,985
Reclassification/transfer (2,017,511)
At 31 March 2018 26,150,000
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 26,150,000
At 31 March 2018 19,800,000
Fair value at 31 March 2019 is represented by: £
Historic Costs 9,649,015
Prior Re-valuations 9,050,000
Ii’evoluotion in year 7.450,985
26,150,000
1S. Stocks Group
2019 2018
£ £
Raw materials 2,034,684 1,754,844
Land and building not yet under development 15,479,769 14,131,343
Work-in-progress 39,661,735 43,143,058
57.176,188 59,023,245
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Notes to the Cpnsolidnted Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

16. Debtors
Group Company

2013 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors 32,956,572 25,389,784 9,972 -
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 78,899,040 73772763
Amounts recoverable on contracts 57.895,799 51,201,875 - -
Other debtors 1,118,315 457170 - -
Value Added Tax Recoverable 3,704,501 3148.913 110,716 -
Prepayments and accrued income 5,388,013 4,755,533 2,856,873 58.065
101,063,199 84,853,286 79,676,601 73.830.828

Amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, interest free have no fixed date of repayment and are

repayable on demand.

17. Current asset investments

Group Company
2018 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Listed investments 63,005 54178 5,000 5,000

The market value of listed investments at 31 March 2018 held by the group - £63,005 (2018 - £54.,178). and by
the company £5,000 (2018 - £5,000). The prior year balance has been restated as a current assets, rather than
long time asset, to more accurately reflect the nature of the investement.

18. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company '
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Bank loans and overdrafts (see note 20) 12,344,887 8,234,079 - -
Other loans (see note 20) 37.720 257.720 - -
Hire purchase contracts (see note 21) 3,891,598 3,368.833 - -
Trade creditors 51,082,692 37.515,483 445,231 1235
Tax 1,593,262 2,050.490 - -
Social security and other taxes 2,970,105 3.020,737 98,298 83,983
VAT 4,197,807 4,358,035 - -
Other creditors 17,694,263 9,734,148 245,504 226,527
Accruals and deferred income 53,163,917 49,822,283 991,327 1,202,903
146,976,251 118,361,808 1,780,360 1514,649
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

19. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Bank loans (see note 20) 4,649,125 14,752,292 - -
Hire purchase contracts (see note 21) 6,768,617 6.972,240 - -
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 71,196,917 64.739.449
Accruals and deffered income - - 297,311 2,791,354
11,417,742 21,724,532 71,494,228 67,530,803

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are

repayable on demand.

20. Loans
2019 2018
£ £
Bank loans and overdrafts 16,994,012 22.886.370
Loan from related party 37,720 257720
Finance leases 10.660.215 10,341.075
27.691,947 35,585,165

Bank loans and overdrafts

The bank loans are secured by way of first legal mortgage over the property, having carrying value of
£16,300,000 acquired in connection with the loans. The bank loans are also secured by first mortgage debenture
over the Group's total net assets. Interest on bank loans were charged from LIBOR plus 3% pa. to LIBOR plus 4%
pa. and paid quarterly. Since year end £3,804,583 of the current instalment on bank loans have been repaid,
leaving to be £8,440,303 paid before 31 March 2020

21. Leasing agreements

The future minimum finance lease payments are as follows:

2018 2018

£ £

No later than one year 4,275,268 3.747,508
Later than one year but not later than five years 6,768,616 8.972.240
11,043,885 10,719,748

Less: finance charges (383,669) (378.673)
10,660,215 10.341.075
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

22. Called up share capital

Allotted, issued and fully paid:

Normal 2019 2018
Number: Class: Value £ e
250,000 Ordinary shares £1 250,000 250,000

23. Employee benefit obligations

a) The company operates a defined contributions pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the group in an independently administered fund. The pension cost charge represents contributions
payable by the group to the fund and amounted to £2,245,.808 (2018: £1,578,822). Contributions totalling

£367,870 (2018: £219,715) were payable to the fund at the balance sheet date and are included within creditors.

b) The company operates a Defined benefit pension scheme.

Certain Group companies, including PJ Carey (Contractors) Limited, TE Scudder Limited and PJ Carey Plant
Hire (Oval) Limited participate in the Carey Group plc Pension Scheme, a multi employer defined benefit pension
scheme which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The scheme ceased future
pension accrual for active members from 31 March 2006 and became paid up.

The directors of each group company have taken professional actuarial odvice, and concluded that it is not
possible to identify their share of the assets and liabilities within the Carey Group plc pension scheme on a
consistent and reasonable basis. This decision was taken due to the fact that all contributions and assets are
invested together, and are not assigned to one employer, and therefore each employer’s share of the assets
cannot be identified on a consistent basis from year to year. Further, contribution rates paid by each employer
bear no relation to the age profile of the members, leading to cross subsidisation between employers, with some
employers paying more than actually required to fund the cost of accruals of benefits for each participating
employer.

The contributions paid by the subsidiaries, therefore are accounted as if the scheme were a defined contribution
scheme, as the subsidiaries are unable to identify their share of the underlying assets and liabilities in the scheme
on a consistent and reasonable basis.

Under FRS 102 the voluation of the scheme shows a deficit at 31 March 2019 of £5,441,000 (2018: £4,187,000).
It is assumed that this deficit will be eliminated by improved investment returns but all companies in the Carey
Group plc Pension Scheme will have some liability to meet any future deficit to the scheme, in order for it to meet
its liabilities. However, the directors consider that the overcll deficit has no adverse effect on the long term future
of the company and Group.

The total contributions to the defined benefit pension plan in the next year are expected to be £720,000 (2018:
£720,000).

The most recent full actuarial valuation of the scheme was carried out as at 6 April 2016, and has been updated

to 31 March 2019 by a qualified independent actuary. The expected rate of return on the plan assets is derived
based on the long term expectations of each asset class.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

23. Employee benefit obligations - continued

2019 2018
£ £
Present Value of funded obligations (21,219.000) (18.617,000)
Fair value of scheme assets 15,778,000 15,430,000
Deficit in scheme (5.441,000) (4,187,000)
Related deferred tax assets 927,574 711,966
Total (4,513,426) (3.475,034)
The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows:
2019 2018
£ £
Interest on obligation (507,000) (507.000)
Expected return on scheme assets 407,000 375,000
Total (100,000) (132,000)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
2019 2018
£ £
Opening defined benefit obligation 19,617,000 20,451,000
Past service costs 472,000 -
Interest cost 507,000 507.000
Remeasurement arising from changes in assumptions 1,014,000 (1.130.000)
Remeasurement arising from experience (6.000) 88.000
Benefits paid (385,000) (293,000)
Total 21,219,000 19,617,000
Changes in the fair value of the scheme assets are as follows:
2019 2018
£ £
Opening fair value of scheme assets 15,430,000 14,797,000
Interest income 407,000 375,000
Actual return on plan assets, excluding interest income (394,000) (163.000)
Contributions by employer 720,000 720,000
Benefits paid (385,000) (299.000)
Total 15,778,000 15,430,000

52



vy

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

23. Employee benefit obligations - continued

Principal actuarial assumption at the Balance Sheet date expressed as weighted averages:

2019 2018
% %
Discount rate at 31 March 2.50 2.60
Expected return on scheme assets 2.60 2.40
Inflation assumptions 3.50 3.30
Mortality assumptions:
Members aged 65 -male 21.8 years 218 years
Members aged 65 -female 23.7 years 23.7 years
Members aged 65. 20 years on -male 22.9 years 22.8 years
Members aged 65, 20 years on - female 25.0 years 24.9 years
The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the long term expectation of each asset class.
Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:
Defined benefit pension schemes
2018 2018 2017 2016 2015
£k £k £k £k £k
Defined benefit obligation (21,219) (19.617) (20.451) (18.776) (16,839)
Scheme assets 15,778 15,430 14,797 13,389 13,362
(5.441) (4187) (5.654) (3.387) (3.477)
Experience adjustments on
scheme liabilities gain/(loss) 6 &8) 896 384 161
Experience adjustments on
scheme assets gain/(loss) (394) (163) 489 (936) 615

24. Claims and retentions receivable

As explained in the accounting policies note on claims and retentions receivable, no account has been taken of
claims submitted or to be submitted on completed contracts until entitlements and revenue in respect of the
claims is received. Revenue from the release of the retention monies is similarly recognised only when received.

The value of retentions as at 31 March 2013 amount to £26,965,820 (2018: £27.350,190).

The value of claims as at 31 March 2018 is estimated at £34,062,861 by directors (2018: £9,800,000).

25. Subsidiaries

The Company has taken advantage of exemption, under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 102
The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, not to disclose related party
transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries within the group. '

Transactions between group entities which have been eliminated on consolidation are not disclosed within the

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

25. Subsidiaries - continued

Proportion held

Company Name Holding ) Nature of business

P J Carey (Contractors) Limited Ordinary shares 100 Building and civil engiheering

P J Carey Plant Hire (Oval) Limited Ordinary shares 100 Plant hire

Cadant Limited Ordinary shares 100 Dance hall proprietors

Careys New Homes Limited (formerly . Property development and

known as Maxplan Properties Limited) Ordinary shares 100 builders

T E Scudder Limited Ordinary shares 100 Demolition contractors

Seneca Environmental Services Limited Ordinary shares 100 Waste recycling

Crucare Limited Ordinary shares 100 Building and civil engineering

Careys Estate Agency Limited Ordinary shares 100 Estate agents

ION Environmental Solutions Limited Ordinary shares 100 Asbestos Removal

Ccreys Enwro'nmentol Services Limited, Ordinary shares 100 Property development

incorporated in Ireland company

Careys Estates Doon, incorporated in Ordinary shares and 100 Property development

Ireland preference shares company

Careys Shared Equity Limited Ordinary shares 100 Mortgage providers

PJ Carey (Co_ntroctors) Limited. Ordinary shares 100 Building and civil engineering

incorporated in Ireland

BDL Group Plc Ordinary shares 100 Dry lining contractors

Careys Design Team Limited Ordinary shares 100 SpeaoI!st construction
design services

Careys Baird Street Limited Ordinary shares 100 Property mgnogement

services
Careys 1 Hand Axe Yard Limited Ordinary shares 100 Property management

services

All companies in the Group are incorporated in England and Wales, unless specified otherwise in the table above.

All subsidiaries hold their registered office at Carey House, Great Central Way, Wembley, HAQ OHR, UK with the
exception of the three Irish companies. The Irish registered companies hold their registered office at Carey House,

Dardistown, Cloghran, Co. Dublin, Ireland.

26. Ultimate controlling party

The Company is owned by J.Carey, P.Carey and T. Carey who are all directors of Carey Group PLC.
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